# COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA PENNSYLVANIA COMMISSION ON CRIME AND DELINQUENCY 3101 North Front Street, Harrisburg, PA

### December 14, 2022 Commission Meeting MINUTES

Before: Chairman Charles Ramsey

Vice-Chairman John P. Delaney, Jr. Honorable John T. Adams, Commissioner Reverend Dr. Anne Ard, Commissioner Ms. Karen Baker, Commissioner

Honorable Bruce R. Beemer, Commissioner Mr. Mark H. Bergstrom, Commissioner

Honorable Tim Briggs, Commissioner Sheriff James Custer, Commissioner Mr. Philip Damiani, Commissioner

Ms. Gwen Dando, Designee for Honorable Wayne Langerholc, Jr.

Honorable Vincent Hughes, Commissioner

Mr. Andrew Dudziak, Designee for Honorable Sheryl Delozier

Honorable Diane Ellis-Marseglia, Commissioner

Ms. Suzanne V. Estrella, Commissioner Colonel Robert Evanchick, Commissioner Honorable David W. Heckler, Commissioner

Mr. Joseph Hill, Commissioner

Honorable Vincent Hughes, Commissioner Mr. Scott Kuren, Designee for Mr. Eric Hagarty

Honorable Timika Lane, Commissioner

Mr. George Little, Commissioner

Ms. Melissa Myers, Designee for Dr. Denise Johnson

Mr. Sean T. McGinley, Commissioner Dr. Edward B. Michalik, Commissioner

Mr. Geoff Moulton, Commissioner

Commissioner Michael Muldrow, Commissioner

Dr. Edward P. Mulvey, Commissioner Mr. Kevin J. Schreiber, Commissioner

Honorable Russell D. Shurtleff, Commissioner

Honorable Jennifer Smith, Commissioner

Mr. Keith B. Snyder, Commissioner

Mr. Terry Trego, Designee for Honorable Scott Martin

Mr. Robert Tomassini, Commissioner

Mr. Mike Vereb. Commissioner

Ms. Phoenicia Wallace, Commissioner

Mr. William Ward, Commissioner

Guests: Ms. Ana Arcs

Mr. Timothy Clawges Mr. Michael J. Deery Ms. Vicki Wilken

Staff: Michael Pennington, Executive Director

Sally Barry, Director, Office of Justice Programs Kathleen Buckley, Director, Office of Victims' Services

Kirsten Kenyon, Director, Office of Research, Evaluation and Strategic Policy Development

Derin Myers, Director, Office of Financial Management and Administration

Debra Sandifer, Chief Counsel

Charlotte Anspach Jeffrey Blystone Vicki Bonner Kathy Clarke

Christina Cosgrove-Rooks

Angela Crater
Chris Epoca
Theresa Ford
Nancy Heisler
Heather Hewitt
Mary Hickok
Daniel Hoover
Emily Jackson
Rebecca Kiehl
Samantha Koch
Geoffrey Kolchin
Michael Leister
Elizabeth Locke
Levi Looks

Joseph MacLaughlin David McMeekin

Zoe Miner

Natalie Novotny-Goles

John Pfau
John Polheber
Jennie Seigler
Alyssa Subsinsky
Brian Swoyer
Rebecca Szczypta
Jacqueline Weaknecht

#### I. Call to Order

The December 14, 2022 meeting of the Pennsylvania Commission on Crime and Delinquency (PCCD) was called to order at 10:02 a.m. by Chairman Charles Ramsey. Roll call was requested. He informed members that the meeting was being recorded, to which there were no objections.

#### II. Chairman's Report

Chairman Charles Ramsey

The first order of business was to approve the minutes from the September 14, 2022 meeting.

Motion: Vereb. Seconded: Briggs. Abstentions: None Aye Votes: 35 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

 Chairman Ramsey opened his report by welcoming new members Joe Hill, Senior Principal for Cozen O'Connor Public Strategies, and Senator Scott Martin, who represents the 13th Senatorial District in Lancaster County and now serves as Chair of the Senate Appropriations Committee. He also acknowledged Terry Trego, Senator Martin's Chief of Staff, who will serve as Senator Martin's delegate.

Chairman Ramsey announced that District Attorney John Adams from Berks County has been reappointed to another term on the Commission.

He then acknowledged the service and contributions of departing Commission members. Anne Ard has served on the Commission since 2019, and recently retired as Executive Director of Centre Safe. Karen Baker has served on the Commission since 2018, and has been appointed by Governor Wolf to serve on the Victims Services Advisory Committee. This will also be the final Commission meeting for Keith Snyder, JJDPC Chair.

Chairman Ramsey announced that, after nearly six years, he will be resigning as Chairman of PCCD following this meeting. He noted that PCCD's duties and responsibilities have grown significantly throughout his tenure. When he began, PCCD was issuing approximately 500-600 grants a year. To date, we now administer thousands of grants across several new programs, including school safety and security, nonprofit security, county adult probation and parole, violence intervention and prevention, law enforcement support and gun violence prosecution and investigation, and other initiatives.

#### III. Executive Director's Report

Michael Pennington, Executive Director

- Mr. Pennington thanked Chairman Ramsey for his years of dedicated service, not only to this Commission, but to the field of public safety as a whole. Chairman Ramsey also chaired PCCD's School Safety and Security Committee and was appointed as both the Governor's Special Advisor on Gun Violence and Chair of the Special Council on Gun Violence.
- In this year's budget, the School Safety and Security Committee was tasked with administering \$190 million in formula-based School Mental Health and School Safety Grants. Since September, PCCD staff have been working to process nearly 800 applications submitted by school districts, charter schools, intermediate units, and career and technical centers. Staff have completed initial programmatic reviews of all applications, and we've made several awards to date. We are working to process requests as quickly as possible and have been providing updates to the field on our progress.

The School Safety and Security Committee will reconvene on January 11, 2023. Among the agenda items, the Committee will take action on recommended applications funded through this year's Violence Intervention and Prevention, or VIP, appropriation. Updates on the projects that

are approved, as well as updates on the current cohort of VIP grants, will be shared at future Commission meetings.

The VIP Technical Assistance Project is making strides. Last week, PCCD and partners at WestEd and LISC hosted an informational webinar for grantees on the launch of a new statewide community of practice. This initiative will help connect people and groups working to prevent violence and address its impacts within their communities, and provide high-quality resources, training, and technical assistance opportunities at no cost.

- The Adult Behavioral Health Commission was a task force established after the budget passed to make recommendations as to how to expend \$100 million in funding to support mental health needs in the Commonwealth. It appears that the \$100 million carved out for adult behavioral health initiatives that was approved in this year's budget will be taken up in the next legislative session. If there is interest in reading the Commission's recommendations, which included criminal justice and public safety related initiatives, a copy can be found on the Department of Human Services' website.
- The Task Force on Child Pornography held its final meeting on September 28 and adopted a report of findings and recommendations drafted by the Joint State Government Commission in consultation with PCCD. The recommendations included amending the term "child pornography" in Pennsylvania laws and regulations by replacing it with "child sexual abuse material"; improving access to training for law enforcement officers and county probation officers; offering more equipment to support the investigation of these offenses; and support targeted education opportunities for judges and prosecutors. The final report can be viewed on PCCD's website under the Task Force Reports section.
- Mr. Pennington's final general update was on the federal Byrne State Crisis Intervention Program
  (SCIP) Funds, which were new funds allocated as part of the federal Bipartisan Safer Communities
  Act, which was signed by President Biden in June 2022, to support a wide range of programming
  throughout justice agencies, educational agencies, and behavioral health agencies.

The U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) recently announced the availability of \$257.8 million in federal funds. These dollars can be used to implement state crisis intervention court proceedings and related programs or initiatives with an overarching goal of reducing gun violence. Pennsylvania is eligible for approximately \$8 million under this formula-based solicitation. As part of this solicitation, DOJ is requiring state applicants form a diverse Crisis Intervention Advisory Board to inform and guide the state's efforts in this space and develop a program plan for use of Byrne SCIP funds. Board members must include representatives from law enforcement, the community, courts, prosecution, behavioral health providers, victim services, and legal counsel. States may utilize existing groups to fulfill this requirement.

Given the structure, composition, and existing work of our Commission and Advisory Committees, PCCD plans to identify our Commission as the entity responsible for oversight of Byrne SCIP funds, and will use a group like our Committee of Chairs to support the development of a funding framework for use of these dollars. We'll also crosswalk previously identified strategic priorities to develop a program plan that can guide the development of a funding framework and can be submitted for approval by the feds. We believe utilizing this existing infrastructure will ensure these much-needed investments can be made in a timely fashion. PCCD will submit our noncompetitive application to BJA on December 19.

• The first action item for consideration is the First Chance Trust Fund Statement of Policy Update, which was included as a separate document at the end of the meeting materials.

In December 2017, the Commission was tasked by Act 44 of 2017 to adopt an original statement of policy regarding the First Chance Trust Fund, which is a fund intended to provide enhanced opportunities to at-risk youth in those areas of the Commonwealth that have higher high school drop-out rates, incarceration rates, or high crime rates. The Act required the Commission to adopt

a Statement of Policy that includes the risk factors that may lead to criminal behavior and provide for the 'maintenance use' of the fund.

When we adopted the original Statement of Policy, we opted to implement the program through the JJDPC, with consultation with VSAC, as that committee was the only one we had at the time familiar with student needs.

Since then, however, we've seen the addition of the School Safety and Security Committee, which contains membership of individuals with direct expertise with students and school administration. As the First Chance Trust Fund supports scholarships to students and/or programs to be implemented in schools to provide assistance to at-risk youth, it made sense to revise the statement of policy to allow for the inclusion of members from the School Safety Committee. Over the past few years, we've also had several members of our Commission express an interest in the program. Based on those factors, we thought that a workgroup of multiple representatives at the Commission level and advisory committee representatives would be appropriate to represent all parties and interests.

The final substantive amendment to the policy was the addition of the depressive symptoms risk factor to the Risk and Protective Framework. That risk factor was added to that listing since the last one was published (which used the listing of factors from the 2015 PAYS) which will make the at-risk factors listing current.

The reason for updating the policy is a timely one because, for the first time in five years, the First Chance Trust Fund has received an allocation from the Pennsylvania Department of Corrections (PA DOC) to trigger the release of funding. The funding mechanism to support the First Chance Trust Fund comes from a 1% contribution from entities having annual contracts with the PA DOC that exceed \$5 million or greater. Earlier this year, an allocation of \$407,106 was received, and it is projected that the Fund may receive regular allocations of at least \$1 million annually over the next four years for the program.

#### Action Item: First Chance Trust Fund Statement of Policy Update

Staff are requesting approval of the revised Statement of Policy for the Administration of the First Chance Trust Fund.

Motion: Vereb. Seconded: Ard. Abstentions: None. Aye Votes: 35 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

This revised Statement of Policy will be submitted for printing in the next available PA Bulletin as required by law. Mr. Pennington will be working on putting together the Workgroup to address the First Chance Trust Fund beginning next month, so if any members are interested in serving, please let him know as soon as possible.

• The second action item is the Nonprofit Security Grant Fund Program. The project summary can be found as a separate document at the end of the meeting materials.

As part of the FY22-23 budget, \$5 million in state funding was allocated to support this program, which was established by Act 83 of 2019 to distribute grant funding to 501(c)(3) organizations who principally serve individuals, groups, or institutions that may be susceptible to or have experienced a hate crime. Applicants are eligible for awards ranging from \$5,000 to \$150,000 for a range of physical security enhancements for their facilities.

This will mark our fourth issuance of these funds within three years for this program. A workgroup composed of representatives from PCCD, the Commission Board, the Pennsylvania State Police, and the Governor's Office of Homeland Security considered the review methodology and the requests directly. Priority consideration in the application review process was given to those nonprofit organizations that indicated that their organization or membership was the victim of a hate-crime or clearly justified a credible hate-crime threat to their organization; served a population

clearly susceptible to a hate-crime; and requests from entities that had not received prior funding from either PCCD's or PEMA's Nonprofit Security Grant Program. Prior recipients of PEMA and PCCD funding were also considered for funding if a new incident was cited since previously receiving funding or to meet security improvement recommendations in their physical security assessment.

Action Item: First Chance Trust Fund Statement of Policy Update

93 initial applications requesting a total of \$3,987,450 in state Nonprofit Security Grant Fund Program funds are recommended to be approved, pending the resolution of programmatic and fiscal requirements and any outstanding conditions or concerns.

Motion: Vereb. Seconded: Shurtleff. Abstentions: None.

Aye Votes: 35 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

Mr. Pennington noted that since the full \$5 million in Nonprofit Security Grant Program funding was not allocated at this time, PCCD intends to open a new solicitation in January 2023 to issue the remaining funds.

#### IV. Criminal Justice Advisory Committee Report

Mr. Mike Vereb

Ms. Sally Barry and Ms. Jacqueline Weaknecht

 Committee Chair Mike Vereb provided the Criminal Justice Advisory Committee (CJAC) report, which begins on page 1 of the Commission meeting materials. Mr. Vereb provided brief highlights from the CJAC meeting, held on November 22, 2022 and continued with a brief session on December 2, via Teams, and presented six informational updates and seven action items for the Commission's consideration.

#### Action Item: Medical Marijuana Act Enforcement Funds

Staff and the Criminal Justice Advisory Committee are recommending approval of ten applications requesting a total not to exceed \$887,698 in state Medical Marijuana Act Enforcement funds, pending the resolution of any outstanding programmatic and/or fiscal concerns.

Motion: Vereb. Seconded: Michalik. Abstentions: None.

Ave Votes: 36 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

## **Action Item:** Federal American Rescue Plan Act Funds – Local Law Enforcement Support Grant Program

Staff and the Criminal Justice Advisory Committee are recommending approval of 197 applications requesting a total not to exceed \$120,274,808 in federal Local Law Enforcement Support Grant funds, pending the resolution of any outstanding programmatic and/or fiscal concerns.

Motion: Vereb. Seconded: Evanchick.

**Public Voice:** Jeffrey Mock, Government Relations Director at Lehigh University, inquired about a specific application and whether this was approved. Director Sally Barry directed him to contact her for further information.

Abstentions: McGinley, Muldrow.

Aye Votes: 34 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

### **Action Item:** <u>Federal American Rescue Plan Act Funds – Gun Violence Investigation & Prosecution (GVIP) Grant Program</u>

Mr. Vereb noted that, as with all Gun Violence-related grantees, PCCD intends to hold applicants accountable for these funds through the collection of information such baseline data, process metrics, and other outcome data to help determine the effectiveness of these grants, including information about the improvement of gun violence crime clearance and conviction rates. In addition, as part of the regular programmatic and fiscal review, PCCD will also ask for letters of support, if relevant; program sustainability plans; supplementation; and other related information. Funding will not be released until grant conditions are satisfied.

Outside of these grants, Act 54 also included a provision that PCCD is to work with the Administrative Office of Pennsylvania Courts (AOPC) to obtain as nearly real-time data as possible on all individuals charged with firearm offenses throughout the state and their disposition outcomes, and to use that data to help determine the effectiveness of the grant outcomes. Research will culminate in a public-facing website or dashboard to share this information.

Staff and the Criminal Justice Advisory Committee are recommending the approval of 29 applications requesting a total not to exceed \$50 million in federal GVIP Grant Program funding, pending the resolution of any outstanding programmatic and/or fiscal concerns.

Motion: Vereb. Seconded: Ard. Abstentions: Adams, Ellis-Marseglia, Muldrow.

Aye Votes: 33 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

Action Item: Federal Byrne Justice Assistance Grant Funds

Staff and the Criminal Justice Advisory Committee are recommending approval of one application requesting a total not to exceed \$105,000 in federal JAG funds, pending the resolution of any outstanding programmatic and/or fiscal concerns.

Motion: Vereb. Seconded: Ellis-Marseglia. Abstentions: None.

Aye Votes: 36 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

Action Item: State Funds - Women's Reentry Services Initiative

Staff and the Criminal Justice Advisory Committee are recommending approval of 21 applications requesting a total not to exceed \$2,000,000 in state funds, pending the resolution of any outstanding programmatic and/or fiscal concerns.

Motion: Vereb. Seconded: Baker. Abstentions: None.

Aye Votes: 36 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

Action Item: Federal State Opioid Response Grant Funds - Augmentation

Staff and the Criminal Justice Advisory Committee are recommending approval of three augmentations requesting a total not to exceed \$986,990 in federal SOR funds, pending the resolution of any outstanding programmatic and/or fiscal concerns.

Motion: Vereb. Seconded: Delaney. Abstentions: Mulvey.

Aye Votes: 35 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

**Action Item:** Federal Byrne Justice Assistance Grant and State Funds

Staff and the Criminal Justice Advisory Committee are recommending approval of one application requesting a total not to exceed \$1,047,784 in a combination of federal JAG and state funds, pending the resolution of any outstanding programmatic and/or fiscal concerns.

Motion: Vereb. Seconded: Michalik. Abstentions: None.

Aye Votes: 36 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

#### V. Mental Health and Justice Advisory Committee Report

Mr. William Ward

Ms. Sally Barry and Ms. Jacqueline Weaknecht

• Committee Chair William Ward provided the Mental Health and Justice Advisory Committee (MHJAC) report, which begins on page 77 of the Commission meeting materials. Mr. Ward provided brief highlights from the MHJAC meeting, held on November 2, 2022 in-person and via Teams. There were no action items for the Commission's consideration.

#### VI. Children's Advocacy Center Advisory Committee Report

Honorable David W. Heckler

Ms. Kirsten Kenyon

 Committee Chair David Heckler provided the Children's Advocacy Center Advisory Committee (CACAC) report, which begins on page 78 of the Commission meeting materials. Mr. Heckler provided brief highlights from the CACAC meeting, held on November 1, 2022 via Teams, and presented on informational update and two action items for the Commission's consideration.

Action Item: State Children's Advocacy Center Funds

Staff and the Children's Advocacy Center Advisory Committee are recommending approval of 41 applications requesting a total not to exceed \$1,907,377 in state Children's Advocacy Center funds, pending the resolution of any outstanding programmatic and/or fiscal issues.

Motion: Heckler. Seconded: Lane. Abstentions: Adams, Delaney, Evanchick, Ellis-Marseglia,

McGinley.

Aye Votes: 31 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

Action Item: State Children's Advocacy Center Funds

Staff and the Children's Advocacy Center Advisory Committee are recommending approval of one application requesting a total not to exceed \$400,000 in state Children's Advocacy Center funds, pending the resolution of any outstanding programmatic and/or fiscal issues.

Motion: Heckler. Seconded: Vereb. Abstentions: None.

Aye Votes: 36 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

#### VII. County Adult Probation and Parole Advisory Committee Report

Honorable Russell D. Shurtleff Honorable Timika Lane Ms. Sally Barry

 Committee Co-chair Judge Russell Shurtleff provided the County Adult Probation and Parole Advisory Committee (CAPPAC) report, which begins on page 93 of the Commission meeting materials. Judge Shurtleff provided brief highlights from the CAPPAC meeting, held on November 3, 2022 via Zoom. There were no action items for the Commission's consideration.

#### **VIII. Victims' Services Advisory Committee Report**

Mr. John Delaney Ms. Kathy Buckley

 Committee Chair John Delaney provided the Victims' Services Advisory Committee (VSAC) report, which begins on page 95 of the Commission meeting materials. Mr. Delaney provided brief highlights from the VSAC meeting, held on November 7, 2022 in person and via Teams, and presented five informational updates and five action items for the Commission's consideration.

**Action Item:** Federal Victims of Crime Act, State Rights and Services Act, and State Crime Victims Compensation Funds

Staff and the Victims' Services Advisory Committee are recommending approval of one application from the Pennsylvania District Attorneys Institute (PDAI) not to exceed \$435,000 in federal Victims of Crime Act (\$276,042), Rights and Services Act (\$102,179), and Crime Victims Compensation (\$56,779) funding, pending the resolution of any outstanding programmatic and/or fiscal concerns. **Motion:** Delaney. **Seconded:** Snyder. **Abstentions:** Adams.

Aye Votes: 35 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

Action Item: Federal STOP Violence Against Women Act Funds

Staff and the Victims' Services Advisory Committee are recommending approval of one application submitted by the Administrative Office of the Pennsylvania Courts (AOPC) for the "STOP Judicial 2023" Project not to exceed \$218,985 in federal STOP Grant funds, pending the resolution of any outstanding programmatic and/or fiscal concerns.

Motion: Delaney. Seconded: Ard. Abstentions: Moulton.

Aye Votes: 35 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

Action Item: Federal STOP Violence Against Women Act Funds

Staff and the Victims' Services Advisory Committee are recommending the approval of four applications submitted to provide culturally specific services under the STOP Formula Grant Program not to exceed \$450,000 in federal STOP funds, pending the resolution of any outstanding programmatic and/or fiscal concerns.

Motion: Delaney. Seconded: Ard. Abstentions: None.

Aye Votes: 36 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

Action Item: Federal Victims of Crime Act Funds - Augmentation

Staff and the Victims' Services Advisory Committee are recommending the augmentation to the Pennsylvania Coalition Against Rape Grant ID 32910 not to exceed \$104,133 in federal Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) Grant Funding, pending the resolution of any outstanding programmatic and/or fiscal concerns.

Motion: Delaney. Seconded: Vereb. Abstentions: Baker.

Aye Votes: 35 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

**Action Item:** Federal Victims of Crime Act, State Rights and Services Act, and State Victims of Juvenile Offenders Funds

Staff and the Victims' Services Advisory Committee are recommending the approval of 98 applications submitted for the 2023-2024 Rights and Services Act & Victims of Juvenile Offenders Funding Announcement in an amount not to exceed \$24,957,410 in Rights and Services Funding (\$10,800,000), Victims of Juvenile Offenders Funding (\$2,600,000), and Victims of Crime Act Funding (\$11,557,410), pending the resolution of any outstanding programmatic and/or fiscal concerns.

Motion: Delaney. Seconded: Snyder. Abstentions: Adams, Ellis-Marseglia.

Aye Votes: 34 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

#### IX. Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Committee Report

Mr. Keith Snyder

Ms. Sally Barry, Mr. Geoffrey Kolchin, Mr. Gregory Young

 Committee Chair Keith Snyder provided the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Committee (JJDPC) report, which begins on page 113 of the Commission meeting materials. Mr. Snyder provided brief highlights from the JJDPC meeting, held on November 10, 2022 via Teams, and presented two informational updates and three action items for the Commission's consideration.

**Action Item:** <u>State Violence & Delinquency Prevention Programs and Department of Human Services Funds</u>

Staff and the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Committee are recommending approval of one application requesting a total not to exceed \$1,787,995 in state VDPP/DHS funds, pending the resolution of any outstanding programmatic and/or fiscal issues.

Motion: Snyder. Seconded: Baker. Abstentions: Mulvey.

Aye Votes: 35 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

**Action Item:** State Violence & Delinquency Prevention Programs Funds

Staff and the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Committee are recommending approval of eight applications requesting a total not to exceed \$695,848 in state VDPP funds, pending the resolution of any outstanding programmatic and/or fiscal issues.

Motion: Snyder. Seconded: Schreiber. Abstentions: None.

Aye Votes: 36 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

Action Item: Federal Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention (JJDP) Funds

Staff and the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Committee are recommending approval of one application requesting a total not to exceed \$1,125,536 in federal Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention (JJDP) Funds, pending the resolution of any outstanding programmatic

and/or fiscal issues.

Motion: Snyder. Seconded: Heckler. Abstentions: Tomassini.

Aye Votes: 35 No Votes: 0 Motion Adopted

#### X. Constables' Education and Training Board Report

Mr. John Pfau

Chairman Ramsey noted that there was no report for the Constables' Education and Training Board other than the material that is included as part of the packet.

#### XI. Sheriff and Deputy Sheriff Education and Training Board Report

Mr. John Pfau

Chairman Ramsey noted that there was no report for the Sheriff and Deputy Sheriff Education and Training Board other than the material that is included as part of the packet.

#### XII. Other Business

Commissioner Delaney noted that the Law Enforcement video that was produced notably included Commissioner Muldrow, and thanked him for his participation and performance.

#### XIII. Public Voice

Chairman Ramsey invited anyone from the public to address the Commission. There were no members of the public who addressed the Commission.

#### XIV. Adjournment

Chairman Ramsey noted that the next meeting will be held on March 8, 2023. He thanked everyone for their commitment and service, and acknowledged the difference that they all make.

Hearing no further comment, Chairman Ramsey concluded the meeting at 11:17 a.m.